Cleveland Surveying News

PRESIDENT
Steve Metcalf, PS
smetcalf@neff-assoc.com

PRESIDENT-ELECT
Dave Bruckner, PS
dbruckner@roadrunner.com

SECRETARY
Mike Kral, SI
secretaryclevelandplso@gmail.com

DELEGATE
George Hofmann, PS
george hm@ameritech.net

TREASURER
Tim Feller, PS
tim@mcsteen.com

IMMED. PAST PRESIDENT Mike Straub, PS

mikes@straubsurveying.com

Cleveland Surveying News

Distribution: 410

Newsletter

Publisher: Louise Veverka, PS

Columnists:

John Dailey, PS Scott Casey, PS Michael Straub, PS

2018 Advertising Rates

Full page: 9.6"x7.3" \$400 yr 1/2 page: 4.8"x7.3" \$200 yr 1/4 page: 4.8"x3.6" \$100 yr Veverka.ps7513@yahoo.com

> Cleveland Chapter of PLSO P. O. Box 81713 Cleveland, OH 44181-0713

State Board of PLSO 150 E. Wilson Bridge Rd. Suite 300 Worthington, Ohio 43085 Nov. 2018 Issue 18 Vol. 10

SURVEYORS AHEAD



Newsletter Features

Next

General Meeting Jan. 24, 2019

Location TBA

All members are welcome

Reports -

<u>Chapter Delegate Report</u> 4-5

Miscellaneous -

Presidents ReportXSecretary Report2

NSPS Update 7-22

4733-37 Proposed Changes 23-29

Chapter 2018 Calendar 30

2018 Advertisers—Thank You for supporting PLSO

Aerocon Photogrammetry
City Blueprint of Toledo
Roberts Surveying Supplies

GeoShack Precision Laser & Inst. Jake's Stakes

Leica Geosystems

Executive Committee Meeting Minutes – November 13 at 6:00 PM

Neff & Associates: 6405 York Road, Parma Heights, OH 44130

Meeting called to order at 5:45 p.m.

In attendance: Steve Metcalf, George Hofmann, Richard Carlson, Dave Bruckner, Mike Ackerman and Mike Kral

(phone)

Secretary's minutes:

Executive Committee meeting minutes from October 16, 2018 conditionally accepted with revisions as to be submitted by Steve Metcalf.

Treasury:

Steve Metcalf submitted the October 2015 treasury report prepared by Tim Feller, report was accepted as provided.

Chapter Delegate:

George Hofmann read the October Delegates report.

The State website is being redesigned and will be implemented soon with the new address.

The State Board is looking into reducing the number of professions to be licensed. A task force is being formed to review which disciplines may be eliminated. PLSO will speak on behalf of the surveying profession to keep our requirements as is.

The final Standards packet is being reviewed/discussed. The Board is reviewing if streamlining the rules and standards are needed.

NSPS called for a vote to increase dues. Pennsylvania is the only state to vote no. Ohio will review the MOU before submitting back to NSPS.

There is a current discussion if there is a need for Oil and Gas easement standards.

Committees:

Membership Committee:

No new Cleveland Chapter members.

Newsletter Committee:

Deadline for November submission is November 20, 2018, December edition is December 15.

Website / Records Archival Committee:

Cuyahoga County and the Cleveland PLSO Chapter are working together to rescan illegible surveys. More scans and surveys are being added to the Cleveland PLSO Chapter database. This database one of the benefits only available to current chapter members.

Program Committee:

The Cleveland Chapter general meeting and installation of the 2019 officers we be January 24, 2019.

Education/ Scholarship Committee:

Money has been transferred to the Scholarship fund. Multiple Scholarships are available.

Finance:

Discussed during Treasurer's report.

Elections:

New officers will be sworn in on January 24, 2019. There is still a need for new people to participate.

New Business:

We are looking for nominees for the "Surveyor of the Past" on the State level.

Meeting adjourned 6:50 pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Michael Ackerman, PS

Secretary Elect

Jake's Stakes

AMISH MADE

8200 Camp Road Homerville, Ohio

SURVEYING and CONSTRUC-**TION STAKES**

High quality, light colored, HARDWOOD and smooth

ARKER STAKES Bundle of 50 18" x 1 5/8" x 1/2" 24" x 1 5/8" x 1/2" \$0.18 ea \$0.22 ea 30" x 1 5/8" x 1/2" \$0.26 ea 36" x 1 1/2" x 7/16" \$0.30 ea 48" x 1 1/2" x 7/16" \$0.38 ea 48" x 7/8" x 1/2" \$0.28 ea **SQUARE HUBS Bundle of 25** 12" x 2" x 2" \$0.26 ea 18" x 2" x 2" \$0.34 ea 22" x 2" x 2" \$0.38 ea

WEDGES HUBS Bundle of 50 22" HUB MARKER \$0.14 ea/Bundle of 100 \$0.15 ea

12" \$0.17 ea

METAL REBAR RODS Available Any Length Call for \$ NO ORDER TOO = SMALL or TOO FAR

LARGE INVENTO-

RAPIDLY!

FREE DELIVERY ON LARGE



IF WE DON'T HAVE IT - WE MAKE IT!

DELIVERY AVAILABLE: CALL Dwight at Spencer Feed & Supply 330-648-2111

HIGH GRADE HARDWOOD SURVEY **STAKES**

DELIVERY AVAILABLE

- TOPCON DEALER SERVICE & RENTAL
 - SOKKIA DEALER
 - FIELD SUPPLIES
- INSTRUMENT SALES.
- GPS TECHNOLOGIES
- FIELD EQUIPMENT



OBER'

Surveying Supplies

WWW.ROBERTSSURVEYING.COM

5758 Ridge Road

Parma, Ohio 44129

Phone (440) 842-2218

Fax (440) 842-0802

Delegates Report

Nov. 9, 2018

State Executive Committee Meeting

President Diebel called the meeting to order at 6:00 P.M.

Secretary Brian Bingham determined that there was not a quorum present. Meeting began and about 10minutes into the meeting we had additional members arrive so we now have a quorum,



George Hofmann

Motion to accept the minutes for the Sept. 14, 2018 meeting. Motion Passed

Josh Mehelcic Treasurer reported on the July, Sep, Oct and November financial President Diebel accepted reports for financial review

New members; Motion to accept 4 Professional Members, 4Affiliate, 1 Associate, and 10 Student Motion Passed. Motion to accept reinstatement of 5 Professional and 1 Affliate, Motion Passed

State board: PLSO has formed a task force to look into different disciplines that may qualify to be combined with the survey program. Their goal is not to weaken the requirements but to open up other avenues towards licensure.

Legislation to do away with licensing boards have weakened some.PLSO will still actively watch for any changes

Political Action: an attempt was made prior to establish a Legislative Action Committee Create a list of members that have access to their State representatives, senators so that if there is legislation which affects our surveying profession we would have a member that could explain our postion to representative and get their support..

Standards The proposed changes are attached. Next step is to get State Board approval then they are submitted to JACAR. Motion to accept changes Passed.

NSPS Governor: The dues increase was passed by NSPS, Pa was the only state to vote against increase.

President Deibel appointed a committee to review our MOU Memoradum of Understanding) with NSPS.

The last MOU was approved and signed by Ohio in 2013.

Geospatial Data Act was passed by Congress.

Bob Akins reported that he is in his final term as NSPS Governor (term Limited)

He is willing to continue in that position if there is no one willing to step up and run for this postions.

If there are no candidates then the President can appoint someone to fill that position Bob's full report is attached

Annual Conferences 2019-2021 Hilton Easton , Columbus, contracts completed

Continue on next page

Fall Conferences

2019 Mason

2020 Cleveland Marriott Airport

Education: The university of Akron is meeting to look at ways to restructure their Surveying Program.

Finance: George Hofmann reviewed the financials for July, August, September and October and found all to be in order.

Fund Raising: We are looking for donations for our annual raffle to be held at the Annual Conference Chapter Delegates gave written and verbal report .

Respectfully submitted George A. Hofmann ,2018 Cleveland Chapter Delegate

Happy New Year to all.

Jake's Stakes



8200 Camp Road Homerville, Ohio

SURVEYING and CONSTRUC-TION STAKES

High quality, light colored, HARDWOOD and smooth

MARKER STAKES **Bundle of 50** 18" x 1 5/8" x 1/2" \$0.18 ea x 1 5/8" x 1/2" \$0.22 ea 30" x 1 5/8" x 1/2" \$0.26 ea 36" x 1 1/2" x 7/16" \$0.30 ea 48" x 1 1/2" x 7/16" \$0.38 ea 48" x 7/8" x 1/2" \$0.28 ea SQUARE HUBS **Bundle of 25** 12" x 2" x 2" \$0.26 ea 18" x 2" x 2" \$0.34 ea 22" x 2" x 2" \$0.38 ea WEDGES HUBS Bundle of 50 HUB MARKER \$0.14 ea/Bundle of 100 \$0.15 ea \$0.17 ea

METAL REBAR RODS
Available Any Length Call for \$

ORDERS FILLE
RAPIDLY!

NO ORDER TOO

SMALL or TOO

FAR

FREE DELIVERY ON LARGE



IF WE DON'T HAVE IT - WE MAKE IT!

DELIVERY AVAILABLE : CALL Dwight at Spencer Feed & Supply 330-648-2111





YOUR COMPLETE SOURCE FOR INSTRUMENTS & SUPPLIES



Sales : Service : Training : Rental

MORE INFORMATION? Contact Your Local Sales Rep:

Ted Muns NorthWest Ohio (419) 262-3539 cell (419) 243-6418 fax Steve Staples NorthEast Ohio (216) 513-3083 cell (419) 243-6418 fax City Blueprint of Toledo 3637 Briarfield Blvd Maumee, OH 43537

тоц: **(**800**)**548-1503

www.CityBlueprintofToledo.com

NSPS Government Affairs Update October 2018 – College Park, Maryland

John M. Palatiello & Associates, Inc.

John M. Palatiello & Associates, Inc. (JMP&A), the government relations and association management firm that provides federal lobbying services to NSPS, has announced a merger with Miller/Wenhold Capitol Strategics (MW), effective October 1, 2018. JMP&A will be a wholly owned subsidiary of MW and the merged firm will occupy offices at 10340 Democracy Lane, Suite 300, Fairfax, VA 22030. The combined firms will expand their capacity and capability to support clients with professional services in Federal and state lobbying, trade and professional association management, advocacy, grass roots and grass tops campaigns, strategic planning, management and marketing consulting, and event management. A staff of eight full time professionals and additional independent consultants provide full service public affairs competence and proficiency to large and small businesses, trade and professional associations, nonprofit organizations, and advocacy groups.

NSPS 'Day on the Hill' Wrap-up

The voice of the surveying profession was heard loud and clear in Congress on April, as NSPS members visited with members of their Congressional delegations as part of the NSPS Day on the Hill. More than 40 NSPS members from 30 states visited more than 150 members of the U.S. Senate and House of Representatives to discuss three issues (Geospatial Data Act, Infrastructure, and Private Sector Utilization).

3DEP

NSPS has endorsed the USGS 3DEP program to provide a consistent elevation data, primarily through LiDAR collection, for the United States, and has been a leader in efforts to assure the program is fully funded. Efforts are underway to also include provisions as part of both the FEMA/NFIP Flood Map Reform bill, Infrastructure, and the Farm Bill. NSPS has met with key members of Congress to advocate for fully funding USGS at \$146 million per year through the Appropriations process. NSPS has also organized and mobilized other organizations that support 3DEP, such as the National Association of Realtors, who made a similar request of Congress.

NSPS Federal Lobbyist John "JB" Byrd in September attended the USGS Coalition reception on Capitol Hill. Attendees included USGS Director Dr. Jim Reilly and Tim Petty, the Department of the Interior Assistant Secretary for Water and Science. The coalition presented Congressional Leadership awards to Reps. Doug Lamborn (R-CO) and Vicente Gonzalez (D-TX). Gonzalez was recognized for cosponsoring, in bipartisan coordination with lead sponsor Rep. Alex Mooney (R-WV), H.R. 4905, the Improvement of Mapping, Addresses, Geography, Elevations, and Structures (IMAGES) Act of 2018. NSPS nominated this bipartisan legislation for consideration by the 85 organizations within the USGS Coalition, and this was a victory in helping our coalition partners to recognize the impact the IMAGES Act will have for the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) risk map reform as well as for the USGS 3D Elevation Program and USGS stream gage and streamflow priorities as found in the bill. Lamborn has also been a champion of 3DEP and geospatial reform, including the Map It Once, Use It Many Times Act (H.R. 1604, last introduced in Congress in 2013).

A delegation of stakeholder groups supporting the USGS 3DEP program, led by NSPS, met with the Office of Management and Budget in August to promote multi-agency funding of national LiDAR data. The group, which included the American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE), National Association of Realtors, and others, promoted 3DEP to support infrastructure, as well as the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) operated by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). More than 50 percent of the land area of the United States is now covered by 3DEP. The group discussed strategies to complete coverage, as well as update the data acquisition on a sustained cycle.

This coalition, managed by NSPS lobbyists John M. Palatiello & Associates, Inc., also met February 15 at the Capitol Hill offices of the National Association of Realtors to plot strategy for securing funding for the USGS LiDAR data elevation initiative. Representatives of a broad cross section of stakeholders, including groups from surveying, mapping and geospatial; real estate; home building; flood management; science; mining; insurance, agriculture and infrastructure met to plan activities seeking an increase in appropriations from Congress for the program, authorization legislation tied to major applications, and state legislation. The group received a briefing by USGS and the office of the Secretary of the Interior on the current status of the program, applications, and the funding request in President Trump's proposed fiscal year 2019 budget.

NSPS Executive Director Curtis Summer joined representatives of 23 organizations who cosigned a June letter in support of the 3D Elevation Program (3DEP) to newly confirmed USGS Director Dr. James Reilly. The letter, organized by NSPS government affairs consultants, John M. Palatiello & Associates, Inc., was cosigned by a broad cross section of stakeholder groups from surveying, mapping and geospatial; engineering; real estate; emergency response; telecommunications; flood management; science; mining; insurance; and agriculture and infrastructure. The letter stated,

"As you begin your stewardship over the Survey's wide variety of programs, we ask that you prioritize 3DEP and work with the diverse community of stakeholders which partner with the USGS leadership on this nationwide program that continues to gain traction, not only in Congress, but within the Department of the Interior at large, as well as other Federal, state and local government agencies and the private sector."

The Professional Land Surveyors of Oregon (PLSO) in June hosted an on-site exhibition of LiDAR and 3DEP with U.S. Representative Kurt Schrader (D-OR), a member of the powerful House Committee on Energy and Commerce. The event featured field demonstrations and a detailed video showing the integration of video images and collected data to create a 3D map. PLSO President Pat Gaylord and other members discussed the importance of surveying and geospatial data to infrastructure projects and Rep. Schrader's support for such a NSPS-led provision in upcoming legislation. The meeting, held in Oregon during Congress' recess for Memorial Day, was initiated by PLSO members who visited Rep. Schrader during the NSPS Day on the Hill in Washington, DC in April.

Secretary of the Interior Ryan Zinke testified before the Senate Committee on Energy and Natural Resources. In his written testimony, Zinke promoted the U.S. Geological Survey budget for fiscal year 2019, stating, "The budget provides for continued collection of high-resolution elevation and hydrography data for the Nation, including modernizing maps for Alaska and complete national lidar coverage by 2033."

In June 2017, Sen. Lisa Murkowski (R-AK) introduced 3DEP authorization language in Section 10104 of S. 1460, the "Energy and Natural Resources Act of 2017". Sen. Maria Cantwell (D-WA) has introduced S. 698, the "National Landslide Preparedness Act" now with 4 cosponsors, and a hearing is expected soon in the Senate Commerce Committee. Companion legislation in the House, H.R. 1675, was introduced by Rep. Susan DelBene (D-WA) now with 11 cosponsors and was subject to a legislative hearing in November 2017 in the House Committee on Natural Resources, and then reported favorably out of Committee in December.

Appropriations (Continuing Resolution, CR) Funding the Government Through December 7, 2018

On September 28, the President signed into law (P.L. 115-245), a continuing resolution funding the Federal Government through December 7.

Aviation Bill including UAS Policy

On October 5, 2018, the President's signed into law H.R. 302, a five-year FAA reauthorization. Regarding drone policy, P.L. 115-254 contains Subtitle B and the following provisions relevant to the surveying profession:

- Section 341 covers the integration of civil unmanned aircraft systems into national airspace system.
- Section 342 provides an update of the FAA comprehensive plan.
- Section 345 aligns small unmanned aircraft safety standards.
- Section 350 outlines the use of unmanned aircraft systems at institutions of higher education.
- Section 351 provides for the unmanned aircraft systems integration pilot program.
- Section 352 enhances Part 107 transparency and technology improvements.
- Sections 357 and 358 focus on unmanned aircraft systems privacy policy.
- Section 371 provides for an assessment of aircraft registration for small unmanned aircraft.
- Section 379 improves the online waiver and COA process for commercial and governmental operators.

Council on Federal Procurement of Architectural and Engineering Services (COFPAES) & QBS

In January 2017, H.R. 679, the "Construction Consensus Procurement Improvement Act of 2017" was introduced by Rep. Mark Meadows (R-NC), and favorably reported out of the House Committee on Oversight and Government Reform. This legislation would limit the use of one-step design-build and reverse auctions in federal procurement of design and construction services. A companion bill, S. 2311, introduced by Sens. Rob Portman (R-OH) and Mazie Hirono (D-HI) was reported favorably out of the respective Senate Committee in February 2018.

The Council on Federal Procurement of Architectural and Engineering Services (COFPAES), a coalition of design societies, has convinced the U.S. Army in August to withdraw a proposed reverse auction for professional surveying services by Joint Base Lewis McChord in Washington State for the location, road centerline and right of way of a road near Yakima, Washington. A reverse auction violates Federal law (the "Brooks Act," 40 U.S.C. 1101) and the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR part 36.6), COFPAES noted in a letter to the contracting office. NSPS is a member of COFPAES, which acts as a watchdog on qualifications based selection (QBS) compliance. NSPS and COFPAES support legislation in Congress, H.R. 679 and S. 2113, the Construction Consensus Procurement Improvement Act. Both bills include a provision to clarify the prohibition on the use of a reverse auction for the award of a contract for design and construction services, and are pending before each body after having been approved in their respective committees.

NSPS and COFPAES have filed comments and questions with GSA and NGA on the CIBORG IT Schedule 70 proposal. GSA's responses were inadequate. In September 2017, NSPS Executive Director Curt Summer, Government Affairs Consultant John Palaticllo, and Federal Lobbyist John "JB" Byrd met with the Judith Zawatsky, the Chief of Staff for the Federal Acquisition Service (FAS) office of the General Services Agency (GSA) to work to address the inherent conflict GSA is promoting through the use of the GSA schedules, such as CIBORG, in that QBS related services are listed on these price schedules. Ms. Zawatsky agreed to review this policy and then communicate back to NSPS and COFPAES after a policy review is complete.

As an additional threat to QBS, NSPS has been alerted through COFPAES regarding the Section 809 Panel that was directed by Congress in the FY2016 National Defense Authorization Act to look at ways to make DoD procurement faster. NSPS believes this panel is getting out of control. It is now looking at government-wide procurement reform (not just DoD) and there are members of the panel who want to attack or even repeal QBS. This is coming from concerns regarding the speed and efficiency of the QBS process. One section 809 panel member recently said Federal procurement needs to be made faster, by stripping out anything and everything that prevents quick purchases of everything like it is a commodity. In January 2018, the Section 809 Panel released its Volume I Report, which includes recommendations on a number of topics, such as commercial buying, contract compliance and audit, defense business systems, and small business contracting. COFPAES monitored the panel's deliberations to assure there was no threat to or discussion of the Brooks Act, QBS, architecture-engineering and related services (including surveying and mapping), as had been rumored. The only reference to A&E services in the report is in a table showing small business awards by business category. The Panel's Volume 2 and 3 Reports will soon be released, respectively.

COFPAES is also working with the Office of Federal Procurement Policy, having met in November 2017 with Acting OFPP Administrator Leslie Field, and on May 3, 2018 with OFPP and FGSA officials, on reforms to address the fact that it now takes federal agencies as long as 2 years to complete a QBS award on a multiple award, ID/IQ contract.

Davis-Bacon

This issue has been brought to the attention of the Trump transition team and current staff at the Department of Labor. In October 2017, NSPS Executive Director Curtis Sumner and Government Affairs Consultants John Palatiello and John "JB" Byrd met with 9 DOL officials to discuss the need to rescind AAM 212. Keith Sonderling, the first political appointee at the Wage and Hour Division of DOL, attended, and NSPS is optimistic that AAM 212 will be repealed. The SBA Office of Advocacy has also weighed in recently with a letter calling for the repeal of AAM 212. Also in October 2017, a coalition of policy groups and think tanks wrote the Secretary asking for repeal of AAM 212, and then on January 26, 2018, a coalition of trade associations and professional societies, including NSPS, cosigned another similar letter to the Secretary urging for repeal of AAM 212. Several NSPS members attended various regional meetings hosted by the Small Business Administration (SBA) office of Chief Counsel for Advocacy, raising this issue. That resulted in a SBA letter to Labor Secretary Acosta last October, urging repeal of AAM 212.

Digital Coast, NOAA Ocean & Coastal Mapping

In May 2017, the Digital Coast Act of 2017, S. 110, passed the Senate by unanimous consent. The House companion bill, H.R. 4062 was introduced in October 2017 by Reps. C.A. "Dutch" Ruppersberger (D-MD) and Rep. Don Young (R-AK), and now with 18 bipartisan cosponsors. In September 2017, NSPS Government Affairs Consultants John Palatiello and John "JB" Byrd were among those who attended a standing room briefing, co-hosted by Reps. Ruppersberger and Young, as Congressional staff and stakeholders gathered in the U.S. Capitol for a briefing on the benefits of the NOAA Digital Coast project. The session featured the project's applications to coastal resilience and economic development, as well as to disaster preparedness, such as the recent hurricanes.



Precision Laser Construction ● Survey ● GIS

& Instrument, Inc., Sales • Service • Rentals • Training • Support

www.laserinst.com

Nikon X Series Total Stations

Faster, Easier, Feature-Packed Survey Work!



GNSS Receivers

Underground/ **Magnetic Locators**



Undgnd./Mag./Leak

Mech./Robotic **Total Stations**



NPL/DTM/Nivo/Focus

Collectors



Data

Ranger 7/Nomad 1050

Key Features

1", 2", 3" & 5" Accuracies

800m (2,600ft) Range, Non-Prism EDM

Time-Saving NEW Autofocus for Quick. Precise Focus

Dual, Full Color Display **Touch Screens That** Allow for Survey Basic. Survey Pro & Layout Pro Onboard

Superior Nikon Optics for Crisp, Bright Sightings

Trimble L2P ready for Tracking of Assets

Hot Swappable Batteries

Lightweight Design

PIN Security

Smooth, Efficient Workflows from the Field to the Office

Give Us a Call To Learn More or Schedule a Demo!

Locations:

Bridgeport, WV:

Ambridge, PA: 724.266.1600 Columbus, OH: 614.759.1000 Cincinnati, OH: 513.539.0022 Akron, OH: 330.633.4900 Charleston, WV: 304.776.1831

















NSPS Government Affairs Consultant John Palatiello provided remarks in May at an event on Capitol Hill in support of NOAA's Digital Coast.

The Senate Commerce, Science and Transportation Subcommittee on Oceans, Atmosphere, Fisheries, and Coast Guard held a hearing this week on "A Decade of the Digital Coast Partnership Program: Successes and Opportunities." The hearing examined how partners and stakeholders contribute to and use the Digital Coast, a NOAA-sponsored partnership focused on helping communities address coastal management issues through geospatial data, tools, and training. The Senate has already passed the Senate version of the Digital Coast Act, S. 110. The House companion bill, H.R. 4062, is pending before the Committee on Natural Resources.

Farm Bill

Congress quietly allowed the current farm law to expire in late September despite House Republicans' hopes they would come to a consensus and pass a reauthorization ahead of the September 30 deadline. The expiration was blamed on discrepancies between the House and Senate, as well as the parties over key provisions, including most prominently a House provision to attach work requirements to the food stamp benefits in the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP). While there was talk of a short-term extension, a stop-gap measure ultimately was not brought to the House floor before the November 6 midterm elections. A number of top negotiators have argued Congress' real deadline is not until December as the majority of baseline programs remain funded until later this year.

NSPS scored a legislative victory in July when the U.S. House of Representatives passed H.R. 4881, the Precision Agriculture Connectivity Act, to reduce barriers to the implementation of cutting-edge technology on America's farms. The legislation, authored by Congressmen Bob Latta (R-OH) and Dave Loebsack (D-IA), establishes a Federal Communications Commission (FCC) task force, in collaboration with the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA), to evaluate the best ways to meet the broadband connectivity and technological needs of precision agriculture. Latta and Loebsack are both co-chairs of the House Rural Broadband Caucus. NSPS worked closely with Rep. Latta to add an individual with expertise in "geospatial analysis" to the task force. The Task Force must be comprised of farmers and ranchers, Internet service providers, broadband mapping experts, and representatives from the satellite industry, electric cooperatives, precision agriculture equipment manufacturers, and local and state government representatives. The duties of the Task Force include: 1) Identifying and measuring current gaps in broadband coverage on agricultural land; 2) Developing policy recommendations to promote the rapid, expanded deployment of broadband Internet access service on agricultural land, with a goal of achieving reliable service on 95 percent of agricultural land by 2025; 3) Recommending steps the FCC should take to obtain reliable and standardized measurements of broadband Internet access service availability as may be necessary to target funding support to unserved agricultural land in need of broadband Internet access service; and 4) Recommending steps the FCC should consider to ensure that the expertise of USDA and available farm data are reflected in developing future programs of the Commission to deploy broadband Internet access service and to direct available funding to unserved agricultural land where needed. The bill's lead sponsor, Rep. Bob Latta (R-OH) included a provision that can include geospatial involvement in the task force:

"representatives with relevant expertise in broadband network data collection, geospatial analysis, and coverage mapping;...".

Federal Prison Industries (FPI) Reform

The U.S. House voted 360-59 in May to pass the FIRST STEP Act, H.R. 5682, a prison reform bill that includes Section 406, to expand the authority of Federal Prison Industries (FPI) to take away work from the private sector, including small business. The provision allows FPI to expand its product offering to public entities for use in penal or correctional institutions; public entities for use in disaster relief or emergency response; and the government of the District of Columbia. The Business Coalition for Fair Competition (BCFC), of which NSPS is a member, opposed FPI expansion into these new markets and is seeking to strike section 406 from the bill, or replace it with a provision calling for a study of FPI. Prospects for the bill in the U.S. Senate are not favorable.

FLAIR Act

In May 2017, NSPS Government Affairs Consultant John Palatiello testified before Congress on H.R. 2199, the "Federal Land Asset Inventory Reform (FLAIR) Act of 2017" introduced by Reps. Kevin Cramer (R-ND) and Ron Kind (D-WI) in April 2017. The bill was approved by the House Natural Resources Committee by a unanimous vote in July 2017 and the Committee report has been filed, H. Rept. 115-322. In June 2017, Sen. Lisa Murkowski (R-AK) reintroduced the Senate

version of the bill, which is a modified version of the House bill and found in Section 6101 of S. 1460, the "Energy and Natural Resources Act of 2017".

In June, the House Appropriations Subcommittee on Financial Services and General Government has approved a fiscal year 2019 funding bill that includes language strengthening the call for a current, accurate land inventory in the General Services Administration database, knows as the Federal Real Property Profile (FRPP). NSPS worked closely with Representative Kevin Yoder (R-KS) to include the following language in the Committee's Report:

"Federal Real Property Profile. The Committee understands that the GSA Federal Real Property Profile (FRPP) has been making progress on the use of geospatial technology and the transparency of the data. However, the Committee is aware of the problem in gathering Federal real property data created by the exemption language for Federal lands found in Executive Order 13227. This exemption denies GSA the ability of collecting meaningful data from large landholding agencies within the Department of the Interior and the Department of Agriculture. The Committee is also aware that Section 7 of the Executive Order provides flexibility for the Interior and Agriculture Departments to still contribute their data into the FRPP. The Committee expects GSA to increase the transparency, accuracy and accountability with both of these Departments given the expansive amount of data which could be added to the FRPP."

Rep. Yoder spoke to the NSPS Board of Directors at its fall meeting in Overland Park, KS in 2014.

Geospatial Governance and Coordination

Jointly introduced in May 2017 by Sens. Orrin Hatch (R-UT), Mark Warner (D-VA), Dean Heller (R-NV) and Ron Wyden (D-OR), S. 1253, the "Geospatial Data Act (GDA) of 2017" was a bill to improve the coordination and use of geospatial data. NSPS successfully advocated reforms which were included: 1) FGDC becomes housed in the Office of Management and Budget, not the Department of the Interior; 2) outlines, by law, a role for the private sector; 3) clarifies, broadens and codifies application of the Brooks Act; and 4) establishes the primacy of state surveying licensing law. In July 2017, Reps. Bruce Westerman (R-AR) and Seth Moulton (D-MA) introduced H.R. 3522 which is companion legislation to S. 1253. NSPS was listed in the news release as a supporter of the House bill.

Sections 11 and 12 were strongly opposed by GIS organizations as it has been claimed that geospatial services are part of information technology (IT), not the field of architecture and engineering (AE). However, surveying and mapping, and now "geospatial" activities have long been considered part of the broad field of architecture and engineering, not only in procurement, but employment and other government categorization, including the North American Industrial Classification System (NAICS).

In November 2017, the revised Geospatial Data Act (S. 2128/H.R. 4395) was introduced by the same Congressional chief sponsors, with the main difference in the bills being removal of Sections 11 and 12.

NSPS and ASCE, as well as MAPPS, issued separate statements in support of S. 1253 and H.R. 3522. In Pebruary and September, John Palatiello and John "JB" Byrd met with Senate Commerce Committee staff on a way to move forward on the issues as there is clearly no peace in the valley on this legislation. NSPS has also met with many personal office staff of the House Science Committee and the Senate Commerce Committee to explain the GDA and why Sections 11 and 12 are vital to professional surveyors. During August, John "JB" Byrd and allied staff of ASCE visited over 50 Senate offices to educate staff on the importance of Sections 11 and 12. In September, staff of Sen. Hatch engaged in negotiations with John Palatiello in person as well as phone communications in order to get NSPS to support the bill. Numerous substantial policy provisions were added at the request of NSPS. While not a perfect bill, Sen. Hatch and NSPS were able to arrive at a point each was satisfied that the original goals of the bill could be advanced, although the impact may not be felt overnight.

In a major victory for NSPS, as a result of NSPS dropping its opposition, and helping to author and advance with a 3rd version of the bill this Congress, the bill passed Congress and President Trump signed it into law earlier this month as part of the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) reauthorization bill that includes numerous unrelated provisions, such as the Geospatial Data Act. H.R. 302 the FAA Reauthorization Act of 2018, as enacted, includes compromise language NSPS negotiated with Congress to preserve the primacy of state licensing laws, utilization of the private sector, best practices (such as QBS), among other NSPS-negotiated provisions.

Government Reorganization

NSPS participated in a June 2017 policy roundtable hosted by OMB at the White House regarding President Trump's Executive Order to reorganize the Federal Government, and submitted numerous recommendations impacting geospatial programs and activities. The Trump Administration in June released its long awaited plan to reorganize the Executive Branch of the Federal government, as set in motion by the March 2017 Executive Order. The White House Fact Sheet generalizes the major reforms. None of the NSPS requested reforms, such a consolidation of surveying and mapping activities, was included. Among the Trump proposals is the merger of the Departments of Education and Labor into a single Cabinet agency, the Department of Education and the Workforce, and move the civil works branch of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) from the Department of Defense (DOD), with navigation activities proposed to go to the Department of Transportation (DOT) and environmental functions going to the Department of the Interior (DOI).

Hydrographic Services Improvement Act (HSIA)

A 2017 Government Accountability Office (GAO) report found that NOAA needs to improve efforts to track and report costs under its hydrographic survey program. GAO found that NOAA did not consistently provide complete or accurate cost data in its cost comparison reports from fiscal years 2006 through 2016. GAO added that NOAA has yet to develop a strategy to increase private sector involvement in the hydrographic survey program as required by law.

The U.S. House of Representatives in June passed H.R. 221, the Hydrographic Services Improvement Amendments (HSIA) Act by voice vote. The bill, sponsored by Rep. Don Young (R-AK), reauthorizes the HSIA Act of 1998 through FY 2022. Rep. Young stated,

"My legislation...will allow NOAA to conduct and contract for hydrographic surveys around the U.S. with specific focus on the Arctic. ...My state has more coastline than other state in the country and we don't know what's under the surface. ...While hydrographic surveys are a critical part of the maritime safety and environmental efforts nationwide, they're especially important in the Arctic...Alaskan waters are incredibly under surveyed."

In the House Committee's memo on this legislation, the bill reauthorizes appropriations for the Hydrographic Services Improvement Act of 1998 through 2023. Under this law, NOAA conducts and contracts for hydrographic surveys and other hydrographic services which are used to map our coastal areas and navigable waters. The bill also authorizes two hydrographic survey programs specifically focused on the Arctic. The Senate Commerce Committee marked up S. 171 in January 2017 and reported the bill out of Committee as amended. S. 171 is awaiting floor action.

Infrastructure

Infrastructure is critical to our nation's prosperity. In February, President Trump introduced a major infrastructure program of an estimated \$1.5 trillion for roads, bridges, airports, and other types of infrastructure. All of these projects require quality and accurate surveying and mapping data, products and services. In recognizing the importance of accurate geospatial data, Congress should include legislative language calling for surveying, mapping and geospatial data for the planning, design, construction, operation, and maintenance for all related infrastructure projects. Data needs include: Elevation; Boundary; Topo; Planimetrics; As-Builts; Asset Management; and others. NSPS is urging sponsorship of provisions enabling the utilization of surveying and mapping technologies and applications in infrastructure legislation in the 115th Congress.

House Transportation and Infrastructure Committee Chairman Bill Shuster (R-PA) released in July a legislative discussion draft and a section-by-section analysis for an infrastructure package, full of new taxes, user fees, reauthorizations of road and water funding mechanisms, and creating pilot programs for raising or spending Federal dollars for infrastructure, designed to meet the challenges of a 21st century transportation system. Shuster said,

"This discussion draft does not represent a complete and final infrastructure bill. It is meant to reignite discussions amongst my colleagues, and I urge all Members to be open-minded and willing to work together in considering real solutions that will give America the modern day infrastructure it needs. ... Over the coming weeks and months, I look forward to additional input from my Republican and Democratic colleagues in order to prepare a bill for congressional consideration."

Congress and Administration could not reach agreement on a bill, particularly on ways to finance an infrastructure program. Rather, the 2018 Omnibus Appropriation, the FAA bill, and the American Water infrastructure Act, make up the investment in infrastructure, to be joined by a Highway bill that is scheduled to be reauthorized in the next Congress.

Licensing

President Donald Trump signed an executive order in July establishing the National Council for the American Worker and the American Workforce Policy Advisory Board. The council will work on a national campaign to promote investment in our nation's workforce by recommending:

"a specific course of action for increasing transparency related to education and job-training program options, including those offered at 4 year institutions and community colleges."

Additionally, Labor Secretary Alex Acosta recently wrote, "We must tear down unnecessary barriers to work ... Excessive licensing forces individuals, like barbers, teachers and nurses, who move from state to state, to give up their career or retake certifications and pay high fees to get back to work." Acosta called on states to reevaluate their approaches, "States should also evaluate their approach to licensing — if licenses are unnecessary, eliminate them; if they are necessary for health and safety, streamline them." However, the President has restored a commonsense approach to regulation, which should "focus on protecting health and safety," Secretary Acosta said.

The House Subcommittee on Higher Education and Workforce Development held a hearing in June on "Occupational Licensing: Reducing Barriers to Economic Mobility and Growth." The hearing explored the prevalence of occupational licensing, its effects on economic growth and upward mobility, and what is being done to address the issue within states and across state lines.

An excerpt from a recent article in the Albuquerque Journal states that, "Professionals in certain occupations could practice without a state license if they have consumer consent, under an executive order signed by Governor Susana Martinez ... " The Governor's Executive Order states that "boards" and "commissions" affected include the State Board of Licensure for Engineers and Professional Surveyors.

NSPS has tried to get the state societies to submit letters, white papers, testimony or other documents they have used to defend licensing of surveying in their state, be it in a sunset review of the licensing board, or for other reasons. We have not received any response. Given the momentum that the anti-licensing movement is gaining, it is important that NSPS produce a document that helps explain why licensing of surveyors should be exempt from effort, and why licensing of surveyors should continue. JMP&A has produced a first draft of such a white paper. JGAC is asked to add to this examples of the different kinds of services surveyors perform, wither it is for individual home and property owners, engineering projects, etc., and what the health, safety, and welfare implications are of poorly executed surveys. In other words, for each type of survey, what is the harm or injury that could be realized if the survey is poorly performed because licensure has been repealed or regulation too deeply removed.

A multistate drone services RFP was amended in June and the deadline for bids has been extended in response to objections submitted by joined NSPS, the Virginia Association of Surveyors (VAS), Maryland Society of Surveyors (MSS), North Carolina Society of Surveyors (NCSS), and several state licensing boards. The procurement solicitation by the Virginia Department of General Services (DGS) still includes services that fall within most state law definitions of the practice of surveying, but fails to require a licensed surveyor in responsible charge. It is also contrary to the professional services qualifications based selection (QBS) law in Virginia and other states. NSPS had filed an objection to a procurement solicitation by DGS that would include services that fall within most state law definitions of the practice of surveying, but fails to require a licensed surveyor in responsible charge. A Request for Proposal for Unmanned Aerial System Services issued by DGS on behalf of the ValuePoint Cooperative Purchasing Organization, LLC, a nonprofit subsidiary of National Association of State Purchasing Officials (NASPO). It asks for bids, including price, for a variety of services to be performed with an unmanned aircraft system (UAS or "drone"), including several surveying and mapping tasks, in Virginia and several other states, with an option for any state to participate. NSPS has joined with state surveying societies in Virginia and Maryland noting the solicitation does not include a requirement for a licensed professional surveyor, in violation of the law in many other states, as the services sought fall within most licensing law definitions of the practice of land surveying, and, as a professional service. NSPS also pointed out the RFP does not comply with the Virginia qualifications based selection (QBS) law, or similar "mini-Brooks Acts" in numerous other states. The NASPO

TRADE IN & TRADE UP

NOW THROUGH JUNE 30, 2015

Exchange your out of date robotic motorized instrument (up to 10 years old) and get a complete scanning and surveying package including MS50, data collector, office software, pole, prism, and tripod.

\$55K (\$14,600 savings)

MS50 Features:

- The fastest, most accurate "hybrid" total station available, with robotic surveying/imaging/scanning capabilities.
- With a 1"robot that scans 1000 pts/sec, the MS50 is designed for high precision surveying, yet easy of use to meet your daily needs.
- Enjoy simple workflow and data management without special training. Points, linework, images, and 3d points clouds easily integrate into most major CAD packages.

Terms & Conditions:

- Any Topcon/Trimble/Leica/Spectra Brand Robotic/ Motorized Instrument, less than 10 years old and in working condition, will be accepted under this program. Traded-in goods must be received within 30 days.
- Trade-ins are on a one-for-one basis and may not be combined with volume discounts.
- The Trade-in program is only applicable against the purchase of new equipment.
- Other conditions may apply.

Contact Alex Cherchian for more info:



- **(**) 614.264.6722
- alex.cherchian@leicaus.com

MEXAGON leic

leica-geosystems.us

- when it has to be right



Cooperative facilitates administration of the cooperative group contracting consortium for the benefit of state departments, institutions, agencies, political subdivisions, and other eligible entities.

A recently published report by the Mercatus Center at George Mason University tracks trends in occupational licensing, finding that over the past six decades, the number of American workers who need a license for his or her job has expanded rapidly. In 1950, just 5 percent of all US workers needed a license to do their jobs. Today, one in four Americans is subject to occupational licensing. When federal licensing requirements are included, the number approaches 30 percent. The following five states had the biggest net increases in the breadth and burden of licensure: Maryland, Massachusetts, Alaska, New York, and West Virginia.

Moreover, earlier this month, URISA published a white paper "Defining the Boundaries of Practice Between Surveyors and GIS Professionals - Background with Recommendations" that seeks to delineate the differences between licensed surveying and non-licensed GIS practice. It was developed without consultation or input from NSPS. It is recommended that the JGAC establish a subcommittee to review this document, as well as the current NCEES Model Law definition of the practice of surveying, to assure that policies and state licensing laws properly describe current, state of the art surveying practice, applications and services that require performance by a licensed surveyor to protect public health, safety, and welfare.

LightSquared

In 2016, LightSquared has rebranded with a new name, Ligado Networks LLC. An independent technical review published in March 2018 found sufficient data in three government-conducted tests to assess the risk of using frequencies near the GPS band for a ground-based communications network — specifically, the one proposed by Ligado. The panel rejected two tests sponsored by Ligado, saying they did not meet minimum criteria for inclusion or use.

The testing and various hearings before the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) come in response to increasing demand for commercial spectrum to support broadband wireless communications. The FCC and other branches of U.S. government are giving serious consideration to repurposing various radio frequencies, including the satellite communications bands next to GPS, to accommodate this.

Ligado has petitioned the FCC to repurpose satellite frequencies near GPS to also support terrestrial telecom services, effectively transferring its license for space-based broadcasting to powerful terrestrially-based broadcast towers. Ligado's custom networks would provide services for industrial operations such as power grids and connectivity for drones and driverless cars, in addition to consumer broadband services.

The National Executive Committee of the government's National Coordination Office for Space-Based Positioning, Navigation, and Timing released the assessment by its National Space-Based PNT Systems Engineering Forum (NPEF) of testing methodologies used to analyze the impacts of adjacent band interference on GPS receivers. The assessment is also known as the "gap analysis."

The nation's leading GPS experts voted unanimously in August to oppose allowing Ligado Networks to use spectrum neighboring the GPS band for terrestrial communications. The NationalSpace-Based Positioning, Navigation, and Timing Advisory Board urged opposition to the proposal saying that even if the transmissions' power was lowered to just under 10 watts it "will create totally unacceptable interference for a great number of GPS users in the United States."

National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) & Flood Map Reforms

In July, Congress passed, and President Trump signed, a new law extending NFIP through November 30, giving Congress time to enact a long term extension and reforms. In 2017, the House passed NFIP legislation (H.R. 2874) including Section 305 that mandates that FEMA must consult with the DOD, USGS, and NOAA to obtain information relevant to flood insurance mapping, including topographic data. Despite being a step in the right direction, that bill did not provide for robust data collection efforts.

Several legislative proposals pending before the U.S Senate include provisions to improve the FEMA flood mapping program. An analysis of legislation in the Senate highlights mapping reforms proposed for the National flood Insurance Program (NFIP). Relevant legislation includes: Section 503 of S. 1313, introduced by Sen. Bill Cassidy (R-LA), would encourage the use of high-resolution mapping technology in the development of FIRMs; Section 204 of S. 1368,

introduced by Sen. Bob Menendez (D-NJ) would require FEMA to use the most up-to-date and high resolution mapping technology and require FEMA to develop a dynamic, database-derived digital display of structure-specific flood risk information, as recommended by TMAC, and issue guidelines for mass letters of map change for states and communities which incorporate such improved flood risk data; and Section 202 of S. 1571 would require FEMA to use the most up-to-date mapping technology and, in consultation with TMAC, to develop a dynamic, database-derived digital display environment of building-specific flood risk information to store and disseminate flood maps and hazard data.

In a major legislative accomplishment by NSPS in January, U.S. Representatives Alex Mooney (R-WV) and Vicente Gonzalez (D-TX) introduced their bipartisan bill to improve the flood mapping associated with the NFIP in FEMA. H.R. 4905, the Improvement of Mapping, Addresses, Geography, Elevations, and Structures (IMAGES) Act' reforms NFIP mapping by leveraging elevation data collected through FEMA's participation in the 3D Elevation Program (3DEP), and associated nationwide structure data, including parcel and address data, as well as strengthening streamflow data nationwide, all of which, among other reforms, will help improve the assignment and management of flood map risk within the NFIP. NSPS worked closely with Reps. Mooney and Gonzalez to identify several recommendations for surveying, mapping and geospatial reforms. The IMAGES Act helps NFIP flood risk management through FEMA's participation in the 3DEP program in USGS. With a return on investment (ROI) of 5:1, over 600 business uses and other public benefits in 3DEP, of which the top two are NFIP and Infrastructure, 3DEP is an example of a true public-private partnership that is reducing duplication, while leveraging existing Federal and state investments related to surveying and mapping enhanced elevation data nationwide primarily through the use of LiDAR technology. Congress passed the Biggert-Waters Act in 2012 and the Homeowner Flood Insurance Affordability Act in 2014 to begin NFIP reform. Further legislation is needed in the next reauthorization of NFIP to improve the surveying and mapping data necessary to provide more accuracy and solvency in the program and fairer premiums for homeowners.

In April, Rep. Rick Crawford (R-AR) introduced H.R. 5559, the "Scientific Flood Mapping Act of 2018" which expands the US Geological Survey's (USGS) mapping mission by transferring the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) flood risk mapping program in support of the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) to USGS. FEMA would still run the NFIP, but all flood mapping activities will be performed by the USGS, with its leadership, technical expertise, and contractors. Rep. Crawford hopes to have better mapping and accurate elevation data be the basis for future flood risk premiums and looks forward to working with NSPS to improve the bill. The bill associated with the proposed transfer, as introduced, also changes the composition of the Technical Mapping Advisory Council (TMAC), removing private sector members. NSPS is currently represented on the TMAC by Wendy Lathrop, whose term is coming to an end. NSPS has nominated Jim Nadeau to fill its private sector spot moving forward, and does not support the elimination of private sector members from the TMAC. NSPS members Jim Nadeau and Wendy Lathrop were joined by NSPS Executive Director Cutis Sumner, government affairs consultant John Palatiello and lobbyist John "JB" Byrd for a meeting in June with staff of Rep. Rick Crawford (R-AR) sought ways to improve the TMAC and NFIP, without eliminating the valuable input FEMA gets from professionals in the private sector from surveying, mapping, engineering and other technical and professional disciplines. NSPS is working with staff of Rep. Crawford on organizing a Congressional hearing later this year on NFIP and 3DEP. Rep. Crawford has already reached out to NSPS for advice in redrafting H.R. 5559 heading into next Congress.

PIPES Act and PHMSA Reauthorization

A report in August found that the safety of natural gas and hazardous liquid pipelines in the United States is regulated by the Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration (PHMSA) within the Department of Transportation (DOT). For decades, Congress has reauthorized DOT's pipeline safety program in stand-alone legislation. In addition, Congress has used reauthorizations to impose on PHMSA various mandates regarding standards, studies, and other elements of pipeline safety regulation—usually in response to major pipeline accidents. PHMSA's current authorization expires at the end of fiscal year 2019.

Private Sector Utilization

In 2017, Rep. John J. "Jimmy" Duncan, Jr. (R-TN) and Sen. John Thune (R-SD) introduced the Freedom from Government Competition Act (FFGCA), legislation (H.R. 1339/S. 506) that would require federal agencies to rely on the private sector when providing goods and services that are commercially available. Thanks to NSPS member visits to the Hill in March 2017, the House bill now has 18 cosponsors and the House Committee on Oversight and Government Reform began work to amend the bill in March 2018, but has not yet approved the bill for full House consideration.

Railroad Reauthorization

Recent railroad accidents in highlight the need for Positive Train Control (PTC) systems, which utilize highly accurate geospatial data, such as GPS data, LIDAR data, high resolution digital imagery, survey data, and mobile mapping to delineate the location of rails, clearances and a detailed asset inventory, to assure safety, train separation or collision avoidance, speed enforcement, and for asset management. The Railroad Authorization was attached to the 2015 Highway Bill signed into law by President Obama included a three-year delay in the implementation of the PTC program for Class 1 railroads. NSPS is still working on the issue of survey monumentation upon railroad abandonment, but no legislative remedy has been identified. JGAC is asked to write a position paper explaining the problem and recommending a solution.

Subsidence & NSRS 2022

While considerable attention is paid to "sea level rise", there is little discussion of coastal and inland subsidence. If the former is addressed without taking into account the latter, the problem will not be solved. USGS did a special, local study in the Hampton Roads/Tidewater region of Virginia and concluded 50 percent of the change was subsidence. "Data indicate that land subsidence has been responsible for more than half the relative sea-level rise measured in the region." (Land subsidence and relative sea-level rise in the southern Chesapeake Bay) and nationally, "an area of more than 15,000 square miles in 45 States experience land subsidence." (Land Subsidence in the United States).

This presents an opportunity for NSPS. "The issue of subsidence and the impact on the integrity of published elements of the National Spatial Reference System - especially leveled bench mark heights in various areas of the country has been of significant concern at NGS for a very long time," according to Dave Doyle. "Any serious effort at either a national or coastal program would require significant focused leadership and collaboration from at least five federal agencies - NOAA (NGS & COOPS), USGS, USACE, NASA and FEMA. Additionally, it would also require close partnerships with numerous regional organizations, state and local governments. Such a program would require major funding to support hiring, training and travel for ... acquisition of high accuracy positioning ..."

It is recommended that JGAC explore a national subsidence data acquisition program and the feasibility and desirability of legislation to authorize and fund such a program.

It is also recommended that JGAC establish a NSRS 2022 Subcommittee to coordinate the advocacy and activities of state surveying societies in support for the NSRS model legislation. This will help facilitate activities of the state societies and assist with information and experience sharing, as well as the development of effective lobbying messaging. It is recommended that a member of each of the 50+ state societies who are responsible for their NSRS 2022 legislative and advocacy activities be on this subcommittee.

Trade

President Trump announced earlier this month a new U.S.-Mexico-Canada Agreement (USMCA), which replaces the North American Free Trade Agreement (NAFTA). In the U.S., the agreement must be ratified by Congress. Like NAFTA, USMCA has provisions on professional services, including licensing, and "specialty air services," which included aerial professional services, including licensing, and page 3, which indicates specialty air services ("specialty air services See page 15, specialized commercial operation using an aircraft whose primary purpose is not the transportation of goods or passengers, such as aerial fire-fighting, flight training, sightseeing, spraying, surveying, mapping, photography, parachute inspection services") are covered by this chapter.

WRDA

On October 10, the U.S. Senate approved House amendments to accompany S.3021, the American Water Infrastructure Act (formerly known as the Water Resources Development Act or WRDA), clearing the measure for President Trump's signature. AWIA, which funds projects by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Bureau of Reclamation and other agencies), together with the Federal Aviation Authorization (FAA), and the FY 18 Omnibus Appropriations constitute the infrastructure program President Trump promoted in the 2016 campaign, along with a Highway bill that will be reauthorized in the next Congress, when the current law expires in 2020. This significant water policy bill includes a number of industry priorities on drinking water and other provisions impacting water infrastructure funding. America's Water Infrastructure Act, bill S. 3021, combines two versions of Water Resources Development Act (WRDA) legislation

developed earlier this year by the House and Senate, respectively, with a Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) reform bill approved last summer by the House Energy and Commerce Committee. S. 3021 is a bipartisan compromise that includes components of all three bills. In a victory for NSPS after working with Rep. Dan Lipinski (D-IL), Section 1107 directs the Corps to create a publicly available online database of all real estate assets in the United States that are owned, operated, managed, or in the custody of the Corps. Section 1118 directs the Corps to develop guidance for accepting and using any information gathered from a non-federal interest through the use of geomatic techniques. The bill now goes to the President to be signed into law.

White House Conference on Small Business (WHCSB)

NSPS Federal Lobbyist John "JB" Byrd is leading a coalition of trade associations and professional societies to have the next version of a White House Conference on Small Business (WHCSB) authorized either by legislation in Congress, or by Executive Order. The WHCSB was a series of three conferences that occurred in 1980, 1986, and 1995. A critical piece to the success of the WHCSB is the utilization of state conferences to ensure broad and equitable representation of the very diverse small-business community. Through the state conferences, which feed into the regional conferences and then into the national conference, small-business owners can develop, enhance and fully embrace the key issues facing small businesses nationwide. H.R. 6446, the "White House Conference on Small Business (WHCSB) Act of 2018," was introduced on July 19 by Reps. Rod Blum (R-IA), along with co-sponsors Stephanie Murphy (D-FL), and Al Lawson (D-FL), and referred to the House Committee on Small Business. H.R. 6446 authorizes a White House Conference on Small Business to gather entrepreneurs in small firms to develop a platform of issues for Congress and the executive branch of the federal government to address. The bill creates the state and regional conferences, leading to a national conference to later than December 1, 2019. NSPS has been a leading member of a coalition of over 50 small business organizations to advocate on behalf of the next WHCSB.

Workforce Development

In August, President Trump signed into law H.R.2353, the Strengthening Career and Technical Education (CTE) for the 21st Century Act. Public Law 115-224 amends and extends the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act of 2006 through FY2023. Section 113 provides that the Department of Education shall carry out research, development, capacity building, and technical assistance with regard to career and technical education programs. Section 219 provides that the Government Accountability Office (GAO) shall evaluate strategies, components, policies, and practices used successfully by eligible agencies or eligible recipients receiving funding to assist all students in pursuing and completing programs of study aligned to high-skill, high-wage occupations, as well as any specific underrepresented subgroup of students.

In May, NSPS participated in a congressional roundtable on workforce development. As a member of NSPS, a member of the Board of Directors of the Maryland Society of Surveyors, and currently serving as Chairman of the Workforce Development Committee of MSS, Bryan Haynie represented NSPS during a Congressional roundtable on Workforce Development hosted by the Smart Cities Caucus, co-chaired by Reps. Yvette Clarke (D-NY) and Darrell Issa (R-CA). The Caucus serves as a bipartisan group of Members dedicated to bringing American communities into the 21st Century through innovation and technological change. The roundtable was moderated by Spencer Overton, President of the Joint Center for Political and Economic Studies.

NSPS is implementing a program, with its state affiliates, to develop high school programs in surveying and geospatial in Career and Technical Education (CTE) through the state CTE offices and local workforce boards.

As announced in News and Views, model letters for all NSPS state societies to send to their state's Career and Technical Education (CTE) office seeking to prioritize surveying and geospatial workforce development. Also, model letters for local chapters and individual surveyors to send to their local workforce development board were prepared. NSPS is currently encouraging its members to begin this grass roots lobbying and awareness campaign.

This initiative is designed to help attract the next generation of professional surveyors and technicians. That program begins with a letter-writing campaign by state surveying societies, as well as by local chapters and individual surveyors and firms.

On the NSPS website, a new page for workforce development has been created. On it are two sample letters to urge state and local workforce agencies to place a focus and emphasis on the surveying and geospatial workforce. The first is a

sample letter that every state surveying society is urged to use to send to its state Career and Technical Education (CTE) office. The second sample letter should be used by chapters of state affiliate societies, or individual surveyors and/or surveying firms, to send to their local workforce development board and office. Included on the top of the letter is a link to every local workforce board across the nation.

This is the first step in a NSPS effort to attract more individuals into a career in surveying. The Federal government provides more than \$2 billion to state and local government for workforce development and career and technical education through the Departments of Labor and Education. These letters are a way for state and local surveying organizations to tap into the benefits of those funds.

- In 2016, NSPS Executive Director Curtis Sumner and NSPS Government Consultant John Palatiello met with officials of the U.S. Department of Labor to discuss the need for a surveying and geospatial workforce development initiative to attract younger and new workers into the profession.
- Pursuant to a motion adopted by the NSPS Board in March, 2016, NSPS is to develop a national strategy for workforce development.



Solutions Made Simple

Robots • GPS • BIM • UAV • Mobile Mapping • Scanning

SALES • SERVICE • SUPPORT • TRAINING



GeoShack is a team of sales and service professionals operating from our 25 retail locations in 9 states and 2 provinces dedicated to serving our customers and providing the best possible solutions.

As the North American industry leader, our team of product specialists will assist you with the latest technology driven productivity tools. **GeoShack** provides expert advice and training on the equipment and software that will make you more productive leading to greater profits for you.

Cleveland

883 Hampshire Rd., Ste. J Stow, OH 44224 (330) 923-4477

Columbus 5120A Nike Drive Hilliard, OH 43026 (614) 529-2583

972-918-5300 www.geoshack.com





Copyright © 2016 GeoShack, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Im.gs.svy.05.19.v1

LOBBY DAY DATA SHEET

Lobby Day Data Short Geospatial Data Act (GDA): Safeguarding Quality in the Acquisition, Management, and Dissemination of Federal Geospatial Data

Legislation introduced by Representative Bruce Westerman (R-AR) and Senator Orrin Hatch (R-UT), the Geospatial Data Act (GDA), H.R. 3522/S. 1253, has exposed a chasm in the geospatial community that could jeopardize chances to reform and improve the coordination and use of geospatial data. Organizations including the American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE) and the National Society of Professional Surveyors (NSPS) support the GDA as introduced and are resisting efforts by other organizations to weaken these important provisions.

Provisions in the legislation seek to improve the governance of geospatial activities among federal agencies, as well as these entities' relationships with state and local government, universities, and the private sector. Transparency and accountability provisions affecting the Federa! Geographic Committee (FGDC) and the National Geospatial Advisory Committee (NGAC) are also included. Most significant is a clause in the bill that designates the Director of the Office of Management and Budget as Chairperson of the FGDC, a position currently held by the Secretary of the Interior and usually delegated to a lower-level official.

| GRADE REPORT OF N | | | Subject Reput County Co | | |
|------------------------|-------|----|--|---------|----------|
| | | | | | (0))((0) |
| CADASTRAL DATA | DOI | D+ | CAPACITY | FGDC | c |
| SEODETIC CONTROL | DOC | +3 | CONDITION | FGDC | D |
| LEVATION DATA | 001 | C+ | FUNDING | Various | D |
| YDROGRAPHY DATA | DOI | c | FUTURE NEED | FGDC | D |
| RTHOIMAGERY DATA | DOI & | C+ | OPERATION & MAINTENANCE | FGDC | c |
| OVERNMENT UNITS ATA | DOC | c | PUBLIC USE | FGDC | С |
| RANSPORTATION DATA | рот | D | RESILIENCE | FGDC | c |
| VERALL DATA GRADE | | c | COMPREHENSIVE GRADE | | C- |

Procurement, or contracting with the private sector, is inherent to the GDA and its goal of making the National Spatial Data Infrastructure (NSDI) a success. Provisions (Sections 11 and 12) that assure quality in the procurement of the collection, and acquisition of geospatial data were included to achieve the overall goals and objectives of the legislation. Moreover, the bills protect public health, safety and welfare.

The Government Accountability Office (GAO) found without management improvements, that "the vision of improving the coordination of geospatial information and reducing duplicative investments will not be fully realized." It went on to warn, efforts to obtain and maintain these data at every level of government."

Since the federal government does not manage the licensing of surveyors or the resulting enforcement, there must be recognition of state licensing laws at the federal level so any federal regulations provide the public with the avenue to understand where their protection of health, safety and welfare resides. Too many GIS databases are built without an accurate initial base. If the initial data is not more accurate than the resulting application data, then the resultant compounding error in positions could signicantly impact public health, safety and welfare in applications.

Federally initiated and funded geospatial projects and their respective data deliverables can and do make their way into state/county/municipal agencies that may then use such data as authoritative documents without being prepared under the responsible charge of a state-licensed professional. Recognition of state licensing laws for geospatial projects by the federal government would serve to not only expand the official use of the data by state and local agencies, but also to encourage and promote regional funding participation.

However, a new version of the bill (H.R. 4395/S.2128) has been introduced without the Section 11 and 12 safeguards for the private sector and the licensed professionals regulated by their respective states. NSPS urges Congressional support for maintaining Sections 11 and 12 of the original Geospatial Data Act (H.R. 3522/S. 1253), while opposing other legislation (H.R. 4395/S. 2128) that would weaken or eliminate Sections 11 and 12.

ACTION REQUESTED:

NSPS respectfully urges Congress to maintain Sections 11 and 12 of the original Geospatial Data Act (H.R. 3522/S. 1253), while opposing other legislation (H.R. 4395/S. 2128) that would weaken or eliminate Sections 11 and 12. For more information, contact John Byrd, NSPS Government Affairs Representative, at jbyrd@jmpa.us or (703) 787-6665.

RAILROAD MONUMENTATION PROPOSAL QUESTIONS

- 1. IN WHAT WAY SHOULD THE ABANDONED RAILROAD LINES BE MONUMENTED?
 - a. PHYSICAL MONUMENTS
 - b. GPS COORDINATES (STATE PLANE-DO ALL STATES HAVE THIS?)
 - c. CENTERLINE DATA AND TIES TO SECTION CORNERS
 - d. OTHER
- 2. SHOULD VAL MAPS OR OTHER RIGHT-OF-WAY LOCATION INFORMATION BE INCLUDED IN REQUIREMENTS (IN ALL CASES OF VARYING RIGHT-OF-WAY WIDTHS THEY ARE NEEDED BUT MAY BE DIFFICULT TO FIND)?
- 3. SHOULD THE ACTUAL SURVEY CENTERLINE BE MONUMENTED OR JUST AN EXISTING SET OF RAILS?
- 4. CAN THIS BE MANDATED UNDER THE "HISTORIC PRESERVATION" UMBRELLA?
 - 5. WHERE WOULD THIS MONUMENTED INFORMATION BE STORED AND AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC?
 - 6. HOW CAN THIS BE MONITORED AND VERIFIED?
 - 7. DO YOU HAVE A HORROR STORY/EXPERIENCE THAT YOU CAN RELATE AND HELP VALIDATE THE NEED FOR THIS LEGISLATION?
 - 8. OTHER COMMENTS/QUESTIONS/CONCERNS



PROPOSED CHANGES September 21, 2018

Chapter 4733-37 Standards for Boundary Surveys

4733-37-01 Preamble.

These rules are **intended to be** the basis for all surveys relating to the establishment or retracement of property boundaries in the state of Ohio. When the case arises where one or more provisions herein must be abridged due to local conditions, the abridgement shall be clearly indicated on plats and/or legal descriptions and reports. Where local or other prescribed regulations exist which are more restrictive than these rules, the survey shall conform to all local and state regulatory standards. When a client desires only a portion of his property surveyed, and this portion can be clearly isolated from the remainder of the property without affecting the interests of adjoining owners, these rules shall apply to the survey of only the desired portion.

Cite as Ohio Admin. Code 4733-37-01

R.C. <u>119.032</u> review dates: 05/09/2014 and 05/09/2019

Promulgated Under: 119.03 Statutory Authority: 4733.07 Rule Amplifies: 4733.20

Prior Effective Dates: 05/01/1980, 11/01/2003

4733-37-02 Research and investigation.

(A) The surveyor shall consult deeds and other documents, including those for adjacent parcels, in order to assemble the best possible set of written evidence of every corner and line of the property being surveyed.

(A) When the deed description of the subject property and the deed descriptions of the adjoining properties do not resolve the unique locations of the corners and lines of the property being surveyed, the surveyor shall consult other sources of information in order to assemble the best possible set of written evidence of every corner and line of the property being surveyed. These sources include but are not limited to: records of previous surveys, deed descriptions of adjacent properties, records of adjacent highways, railroads and public utility lines; also include subdivision plats, tax maps, topographic maps, aerial photographs, and other sources as may be appropriate.

(B) After all necessary written documents have been analyzed, the survey shall be based on a field investigation of the property. The surveyor shall make a thorough search for physical monuments, and analyze evidence of monumentation and occupation. In addition, the surveyor shall, when necessary, confer with the owner(s) of the adjoining property and the owner(s) of the property being surveyed.

Cite as Ohio Admin. Code 4733-37-02

R.C. <u>119.032</u> review dates: 05/09/2014 and 05/09/2019

Promulgated Under: 119.03 Statutory Authority: 4733.07 Rule Amplifies: 4733.20

Prior Effective Dates: 11/01/2003

4733-37-03 Monumentation.

- (A) The surveyor shall set boundary monuments so that, upon completion of the survey, each corner of the property and each referenced control station will be physically monumented. <u>Multiple monuments representing a corner should be avoided.</u>
- (B) When it is impossible or impracticable to set a boundary monument on a corner, <u>such as within a tree or building</u>, <u>where underground utilities are present</u>, <u>or in deep water</u>, <u>etc.</u>, the surveyor shall set a reference monument, similar in character to the boundary monument and preferably along one of the property lines which intersect at that corner. When such a reference monument is used, it shall be clearly identified as a reference monument on the plat of the property and in any new deed description which may be written for the property.
- (C) Every boundary monument and/or reference monument set by the surveyor shall, when practicable:
 - (1) Be composed of a durable material.
 - (2) Have a minimum length of thirty inches.
- (3) Have a minimum cross-section area of material of 0.21 square inches.
- number and/or name or company name.
- (5) Be detectable with conventional instruments for finding ferrous or magnetic objects.
- (D) When a case arises, due to physical obstructions such as pavements, large rocks, large roots, utility cables, etc., so that neither a boundary monument nor a reference monument can be conveniently or practicably set in accordance with paragraph (C) of this rule, then alternative monumentation, which is essentially as durable and identifiable (e.g., chiseled chiselled "X" in concrete, drill hole, nail, spike, etc.) shall be established for the particular situation. When such an alternative monument is used, it shall be clearly identified on the plat of the property and in any new deed description which may be written for the property.

Cite as Ohio Admin. Code 4733-37-03

R.C. <u>119.032</u> review dates: 05/09/2014 and 05/09/2019

Promulgated Under: 119.03 Statutory Authority: 4733.07 Rule Amplifies: 4733.20

1.56

Prior Effective Dates: 05/01/1980, 11/01/2003

4733-37-04 Measurement specifications.

All measurements shall be made in accord with the following specifications:

- (A) The surveyor shall keep all equipment used in the performance of surveying in proper repair and adjustment.
- (B) Every determination of distance and direction shall be made either directly or indirectly in such a manner that the linear error in the distance or direction between any two points (not necessarily adjacent points) shall not exceed the reported distance divided by ten thousand (allowable linear error = reported distance divided by ten thousand, or stated as a ratio, 1:10,000) and every angular measurement shall be made in such a manner that the allowable (directional) error, in radians, shall not exceed the allowable linear error divided by the reported distance (allowable (directional) error = allowable linear error divided by reported distance). Directional error thus shall not exceed 1/10,000 of a radian or 21 seconds of arc. When the reported distance is less than two hundred feet, the linear and angular error shall not exceed 0.02 feet. The reported distance is the distance established by the survey.
- be specified so that the mathematical error in closure of the property boundary does not exceed 0.02 feet in latitudes and 0.02 feet in departure.
- (D) Surveys performed using metric measurements shall utilize the metric equivalents based upon the U.S. survey foot conversion factor.

Cite as Ohio Admin. Code 4733-37-04

R.C. <u>119.032</u> review dates: 05/09/2014 and 05/09/2019

Promulgated Under: <u>119.03</u> Statutory Authority: <u>4733.07</u> Rule Amplifies: <u>4733.20</u>

Prior Effective Dates: 05/01/1980, 11/01/2003

CONTACT GEORGE HOFMANN WITH ANY
CONCERNS OR QUESTIONS ABOUT PROPOSED
CHANGES TO THE STANDARDS.

4733-37-05 Plat of survey.

- (A) The surveyor shall prepare a scale drawing of every individual survey, or drawings comprising all of the surveys when they are contiguous, in which the surveyor retraces previously established property lines or establishes new boundaries.
 - (A) The surveyor shall prepare a scale drawing of every survey in which the surveyor retraces previously established property lines or establishes new boundaries.
- (B) A copy of this drawing shall be given to the client. When required, another copy shall be filed with the appropriate public agencies.
- (C) The surveyor shall include the following details:
- (1) A title such that the general location of the survey can be identified. The title county shall include, but not be limited to: state, county, civil township or municipality, and original land subdivision description.
- (2) A north arrow with a clear statement as to the basis of the reference direction used.
- (3) The control station(s) or line(s) cited in the description and the relationship of the property to this control must be referenced to an established monumented point of beginning such as, but not limited to: centerline intersection of streets or highways of record, section or quarter section corners, Virginia military survey corners or lines, or platted lot corners. The type of monuments set or found at the control stations shall be noted. All evidence used to establish the boundaries shall be shown or noted.
- (4) A notation at each corner of the property stating that the boundary monument for specified in the deed description was found or set, or that a boundary monument was set, or a legend of the symbols used to identify monumentation.

 Each monument found or set shall be described as to its size, material and character. In addition, there shall be a statement describing the material and size of every monument found or set.
- Matter (5) A general notation describing the evidence of occupation that may be found along every boundary line or occupation line.
- The length and direction of each line as specified in the description of the property or as determined in the actual survey if this differs from what is stated in a tolerathe deed description by more than the tolerance specified in paragraph (B) of

rule <u>4733-37-04</u> of the Administrative Code. The length and direction shall be stated as follows:—

- (a) Bearings expressed in degrees, minutes and seconds and distances expressed in feet and decimal parts thereof on each course. If a metric equivalent distance is stated, it shall be stated to the third decimal place.
- (b) All curved lines shall indicate the radius, central angle, curve length, chord bearing and chord distance.
- (c) Each course shall show other common lines such as centerline of roads, rivers, streams, section lines, quarter section lines, half section lines or other pertinent common lines of record.
- (7) A citation of pertinent documents and sources of data used as a basis for carrying out the work. The citation shall include, but not be limited to: current deeds as of the date of the survey, prior deeds or other documents of record, and available deeds of record for adjoining parcels along each boundary line of the survey. If the adjoining parcel is a recorded subdivision, only the subdivision name, recording information and lot numbers need to be shown.
 - (8) The written and graphical scale of the drawing.
 - (9) The date of the survey.
 - (10) The surveyor's printed name and Ohio registration number, signature and seal (in a form which may clearly reproduce on any copies which may be made of the original drawing).
 - (11) The area contained within the perimeter of the surveyed parcel.
 - (12) All references to roads or railroads contiguous to the surveyed parcel shall use current names or names of record and applicable right of way widths, if available.
 - (13) All references to rivers or streams shall use current names of record, if available.

Cite as Ohio Admin. Code 4733-37-05

R.C. 119.032 review dates: 05/09/2014 and 05/09/2019

Promulgated Under: 119.03 Statutory Authority: 4733.07 Rule Amplifies: 4733.20

Prior Effective Dates: 05/01/1980, 11/01/2003

4733-37-06 Descriptions.

- (A) When a surveyor is called upon to prepare a new description, either to replace an existing description which is inadequate or to create a new piece of property, said description shall include the following items:
- Year 10 (1) Sufficient caption so that the property can be adequately identified.
- (2) A relationship between the property in question and clearly defined control station(s).
 - (3) The basis of the bearings.
- (4) A citation to the public record of the appropriate prior deed(s).
 - (5) The surveyor's name, Ohio registration number and date of writing and/or survey.
 - (B) A metes and bounds description shall include, in addition to paragraph (A) of this rule:
- (1) A description of the boundary monument used as the initial point of the description.
- (2) A series of calls for successive lines bounding the parcel, each of which specifies:
- (a) The intent in regards to adjoiners or other existing features.
- (b) The direction of the line relative to the direction of the basis of bearing.
 - (c) The length of the line.
- and (d) A description of the boundary monument (or reference monument) and the bowhether found or set to identify the end of the particular line.
- (e) All curved lines shall indicate the radius, central angle, curve length,
- (f) The reported boundary data shall meet the closure requirements of paragraph (C) of rule 4733-37-04 of the Administrative Code.
 - (3) The area of the parcel.

- (C) Descriptions other than metes and bounds descriptions may be a reference to a recorded survey plat or a parcel on a recorded survey plat and shall include sufficient and adequate legal and technical wording so that the property can be definitely located and defined.
- (D) A statement shall appear indicating that either: the description was made in accordance with a recent survey and the date thereof, or the description was made based on a previous survey, of a certain date, and date of description, or the description was not based on a survey.
- surveyor shall base the description on a current or updated survey of the property.

Cite as Ohio Admin. Code 4733-37-06

R.C. 119.032 review dates: 05/09/2014 and 05/09/2019

Promulgated Under: 119.03 Statutory Authority: 4733.07 Rule Amplifies: 4733.20

Prior Effective Dates: 05/01/1980, 11/01/2003

4733-37-07 Subdivisions.

When a subdivision is created from a piece of property, or several adjoining pieces, the following rules shall apply:

- (A) Rule <u>4733-37-02</u> of the Administrative Code shall apply to the original tract(s) of land prior to being subdivided.
- (B) Rule <u>4733-37-03</u> of the Administrative Code shall apply to the outside perimeter of the original tract(s) of land and to the outside perimeter of the newly created subdivisions. All newly created lots, blocks, rights of way, angle points, points of curvature and points of tangency shall be monumented according to local regulations. Street rights of way may be monumented with monuments on the centerline instead of right of way monuments. Centerline or right of way monuments shall be set at all intersections, angle points, points of curvature and points of tangency.
- (C) All newly created subdivisions shall comply with rules <u>4733-37-04</u> and <u>4733-37-05</u> of the Administrative Code.
- (D) All easements within a newly created subdivision shall be accurately dimensioned so that each easement line can be reproduced without ambiguity.

Cite as Ohio Admin. Code 4733-37-07

R.C. 119.032 review dates: 05/09/2014 and 05/09/2019

Promulgated Under: 119.03 Statutory Authority: 4733.07 Rule Amplifies: 4733.20

Prior Effective Dates: 11/01/2003

Cleveland Chapter & State 2018 Schedule

Dates, times and locations subject to change, emails will be sent out with notification of any changes

Friday, January 13 - State PLSO Executive Meeting

Thursday - January 25, 2018 – Cleveland Chapter Annual General Meeting and installation of officers

February 21-24, 2018 PLSO State conference in Sharonville, Ohio

Friday, March 9 - State PLSO Executive Meeting

Tuesday, March 13 – 6 p.m. Cleveland Chapter Executive Meeting (newsletter #1 deadline 3/20)

Friday, April 14 - State PLSO Executive Meeting

April 14, Prior to the state board meeting STATE CPD Workshop

Tuesday, April 17 – 6 p.m. Cleveland Chapter Executive Meeting (newsletter #2 deadline 4/24)

April (TBA) - Cleveland Chapter General Meeting & CPD

Friday, May 11 - State PLSO Executive Meeting

Tuesday, May 15 – 6 p.m. Cleveland Chapter Executive Meeting (newsletter #3 deadline 5/22)

May STATE CPD Workshop (date and location TBA)

Friday, July 13 - State PLSO Executive Meeting

July 13, 45th Annual William Haas Memorial Golf Outing at Springvale Golf Course

July (TBA) - Clev. Chapter Education Recognition Meeting (newsletter #4 deadline 7/27)

Friday, September 14 - State PLSO Executive Meeting

Tuesday, Sept. 18 – 6 p.m. Cleveland Chapter Executive Meeting (newsletter #5 deadline 9/21)

October 11 & 12 - PLSO State Fall Seminar Perrysburg, Ohio

Tuesday, Oct. 16 – 6 p.m. Cleveland Chapter Executive Meeting (newsletter #6 deadline 10/23)

Friday, November 9 - State PLSO Executive Meeting

Tuesday, Nov. 13 – 6 p.m. Cleveland Chapter Executive Meeting (newsletter #7 deadline 11/20)

Tuesday, Dec. 12 (if needed) – 6 p.m. Cleveland Chapter Executive Meeting (newsletter #8 deadline 12/15/17)

4th Thursday in January 2019 – Cleveland Chapter General Meeting & Installation of officers

2018 State PLSO Officers

President—Curt Deibel, PS, Tuscarawas Valley Chapter Chap.President –Elect—Tom Silva PS Toledo Chapter

Secretary—Brian Bingham, PS, Central Ohio Treasurer—Josh Mehilcic, PS, Miami Valley Chap.

Imm. Past Pres.—Charles R. Harkness, PS, Muskingum Chapter

NSPS Director—Robert L. Akins, PS, Tuscarawas Valley Chapter